
Distr.
GENEHAL

m/AC. 7/SR. 534
13 December 1966:....:

ENGLISH:
Original: FRENCH

..• i:JOCIAL LONMITT.8E

SUNMARY HECOHD OF THE FIVE HlJNj)};T8D AND TIiIRTY-:F'OUHTH'V1E£TING

held at the pQlais des Nations, Geneva,
on Jiednesday, b July 1966, at 3.25 p. m,

16P.

.. Or-garri.zn tion of work

Slavary (~tem 25 of the Council ag~nda)

GE.66-l7409

CONT.i:NTS :

UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUi'JCIL

F0rty-first session



t

(J

". f

...
;, ' .

~, ! "I i~"~ ~ '"'.

Mr. FERNANDINI (Peru·)· ... · .

I; .I";..'., ~j, ,
, .......,. . .~."~ \\

Mrs~ SELLAMI

Mr. ETAME

Mr. DELISLE

Mr. CONTRElffiS

Mr. JURZA

Mr. NAJERA

Mr. BOULLET

Mr. DAVIN

Mrs. tfJilNTZOULINOS

,'~lr 0' CRAND
.'.-

Mri-NABAVIIJ:clU

India

-kllgeria

Cameroon

Canada

Chil'e

Czechoslovakia

Ecuador

France

E!AC.7!SR.534
page 2 ,

United Kingdom

United states

Union of Soviet Socialist Republics

Venezuela

"

Iraq

Luxembourg

Morocco

Pakistan

Panama

Peru

Philippines

Romania

Sweden

:~ , .
• f

,Mlj~ • AFNAN . "~'".. \, . ~....

. " Miss LUNSINGH':'MElJER
'. • i

.Mr. FILA'LI

Mr. Nfi.IK

Mr. VARELA

Mr. SOLARI

Mr. UY

Mr. PREDESCO

(Mr. FORSHELL
(Mr. BERGQUIST

Sir Samuel HOARE

Mr. ELMENDORF

Mrs. KASTALSKAYA

Mr. RJl.PIDI.EL

..., "\ ....... ~

Mrs. FARMAN-FARMAIAN

Miss HO~JELL

Specd.a.L' Rapporteur' on Slavery

Director, Division of Human Rights

Secretary of the Committee

Sir Herbert;BHOADLEY·· - ..----"'..--'

Als0.l?resent:

Mr. AWAD

j

["t·•.·
~~i Represen::::t:~~·~:~~e~r:::::~~n
rh" World Haal th Urganization

il"~epresentativeof the

f,,::~:::;:~~nsChildren's :d'
[ti:/i(") '..'. .•.. ..,. 'Mr.§CHREIBER . ..~;\

i:;~.•...•.•.~.•.•.•.•.:..•.:.•..,:.•.••.;..•.,.'~.'....•.•.•..•.:,..•..-...•.-e-.•.•.••., .•..•.•••.•;.•.•.•..,·.j{':~'M;-:'~~OGORSK~,?c="~,"" .\ '."
"='. =a; : "'"'.:=:.~."",.;,..~.:""'.. -",-,-"-=-,,D.i(.,~,_,(· '·~i~;..".~,.,,.;.i:<_>j":,,,,.:..~, .•=~;--_.. M •• _·· •••



E!AC. 7/SR. 534
page 3 "

ORGf~IZATION OF WORK

The CID\IRMAN:welcomed the members of the Committee and the representatives

of the Secr~tariat, especially Mr. Schreiber, the new Director of the Division of

HU~ Rights. He stressed the very ~reat importance of the Social Committee's

work for the Council as a whole, the United Nations and world development. He

spurned the widespread beLi.ef that the Social Committee devoted i tself prima~ily to

theoretical work and Was of little practical ~mportance; that failed tc recognize

its great humanitarian mission an~ the part ,it played in the struggle against all. , ,

the evils'born'of injustice. In view of the urgency of the Committee'~ task and the

short tim~ it had in which to complete a very vast programme, he urged members,~o
, .

work efficiently and expeditiously.

The Committee had instructions to examine items 17,18, 2~, 22, 23, 24 and 25 of

the Council's agenda. It was proposed that itHms 17, 21, 23 and 25 should be

considered during the week from 5 to 8 July, it8ms 17, 22 and 24 from 11 to 15 July,

and items 17·, '18 and 21 from 18 to 22. July•. _ . ,

It was so decided.

SLAVERY (item 25 of the Council agenda) (E/4168,and Add.l - 5)
The, CHAIRMAN asked the members of the Committee to consider the report

prepared by Mr. Mohamed Awad, Special Rappor~eur on blavery (E/4l68 and Add.l - 5),
in accordance with resolutions 960 (XXXVI) and 1077 (XXXIX). The report WaS based

on a fifteen-point questionnaire which had bee~ sent to all Member States, and the'

"

·answers in order· to have as much information as possible at ~s d:;i.sposal.

11 The text of Mr. Awad's stat~ment was subsequently distributed under 'the '
symbol E/AC.7/L.485.

replies received were reproduced in it. In July 1965 the Spe,cial Rapporteur had

submitted to the Council at its thirty-ninth session a report,~hich it had not been

possible to consider then for lack of time. He now asked Mr. Awad to introduce his

report.

Mr. AWAD (Specie.l Rapporteur) introduced ,'his ~eport on slave"J.'YYwhich,

he hoped, was more complete·than that submitted the previous yea~. The latter ;had

suffered from two main defects: first, it had not been possible, in th~,time ava~lable,

to have it circulated in all the working languages; and, secondly, less than half the

States Members of the United Nations.had answered the questionai~e on which the report

was to be based. The present report had been circulated, in good time in all the work­

inglanguages and the number ,of ,states which had answered the questionnaire had ris~n

from fifty-one to seventy:"five;.. Hewoukd, of couree, have liked to receive sti~.l more



I.' ,

E/AC.7/SR.534" "
pr.~ge 4

,', <i

".
'~).

"

, t

.., I',' ''';'

",

~_.';---~..~.........,-_ ..... ~~."-, .. _,.-

an9- which met quite often.
. ~ " .'

The Secretariat had circulated Council resolution lU77 (XXXIX).,- to the ste'ltes','

Members of 'the' 'united Nations""" emphasizin~ how important"it':was t}~ff; .~;:L.J. ..§:~?-tes

sllould' reply tdthe' questioIina±~e'as' soon as possible'. ,The' l~ra:bic ,translation he. '

had had made 'for Arab:l..c-spea¥:i;r;,g coUntries had proved useful. A.breakdown, by , .. '

continent, of the replies received r-eveaLed 'a 'considerable increase, 'in some continents I

in the riumber. 'of "countries repl.ying· to' the questionnaire. " ;" ,.,~,l r,'"

In .'1966' tWd Memher"States '- 'th~ 'United' states of America and the Union .of S'oriet

Socia11'st :RepUblics - -had sent supplementary ":replies. The new answer' .·from.. the .:

United States referred to questions'XII; XIII; XlV. and XV, ·whichwere of special

importance for the chapter on suggestions for possible action by the United Nations.

Unfortunately, that answer had been received too late to be included in the relevant
I.....

chapter. A special reference·to it would'therefore be made -when 'Chat chapter W3.S

discussed.

'··..The report was/based entirely upon the anawe....s received from States Nembers ·lPf.

the United Nations, members of the spacialized agancies and non-governmental

organizations in consultative status, the same questionnaire having b~~~~~~~t, to all,

despite the fact that some of the questions were'perhaps irrelevant in 'so:far as the

specialized agencies and non-governmental'organizu:tions were conc~:.Z:~d~:. ~uestions

XII~ XII! and XIV were of particul~r interest to those aGencies and,organiz~tions

whereas the whole questionnaire was of interest to all Member states even ,though pom~

countr'ies 'we're' not, 'and never had 'been, even remotely concerned .wi.bh the question of

slavery. Once the 'United Nations interested itself in a qu.estion, that question

became a matter of direct conCern to every Membe~ of the Organization.

number of replies received was not unsatisfactory;' i.f 70 per cent of the

sent complete answers, a useful report could have been prep~r.ed.

qU~lity of the answers varied very greatly and in many cases left much to be
, . . . ...' ..... ". ~...~ ,.,.

At'the thirty-ninth session he had complained that some of the an~we~s:were

perfUnctory. "He hoped, however, to be able to make good use of the available

rilat.erial• '

He agaln deplored the rather obvious lack of interest discernible in,the answers

the spccia;lize-d agencies.' 8.0 many Member Statesl~eferred in theip, answers' to bhe

of the raleof those agencies that it was difficult not to aonclude that
,

., ...., \ r- co-,operation wa,s'indispensa,ole. That -co-oper'atd.on might be achieved through

Adrrd.nist-rative 'Comm'itt'ee on Co-ordination (,-1.00) Lniwhf.ch all agencd.ea were.



E/AC.7/SR.534
page 5'

The questionnaire sent 'to States Members comprised fifteen questions. The

first ,quest~9~ concerned the legislatiye, administrative or .. other., 'measures States

had taken to ,c9mbat slavery and institutions or practices silJ1ilar to '.'slaver.y.'
~ " ..~ .

Thai; q~est~on,w,as:not concerned with the existence of slavery; it dealt with, the

legal position, and the administrative measures applied in the matter .of 'slav.er.y.

It had, .b~e,n,:~ulJ,;Y; answered by many Member'States, nearly all of which had given

det~~1~~:4esqriptions,of their legislative'and administrative measures. In some

cases", the prohibition of slavery was mentioned in the very Constitution of, the

State, as well as being 'the subject of legal and administrative measures. Many

of those legal provisions.dated back, to the prevjous century and some had been

repeatedly, confirmed ~ subsequent legislation. In that connexion, ,he had just

received a communication from the ,Allstrien delegation requesting that paragraph 18 ,

of the":report ,(El/4l6B/Add·,.1) be 'amended to read: "The Court decree of 19 August 1826

specified that, any slave becomes free as 'soon as he enters'Austrian territory or

boards an Austrian ship or is transferred, for whatever reason, as a slave to an

Austrian national. The same provisions are also applicable in'respect of 'prisoners

of ,war who 'are .treated as slaves by the belligerent 'by whom they are captured_" ..

More than one country had a ·provision. in its legislation to the effect that ~.sJ,ave '

who :'set.. his'foot upon the territory of that State automatically became a tree man.

He wondered.whether such a provision could not be. included in the legal system of·

every State Member of the., United Nations.

Questions II. and III dealt with the existence, or absence,. of slavery or
,

any institution or practice similar to slavery ·in the territory of the State. The

slavery in ques~ion was that defined at the beginning of the questionnaire. Many

answers, had been received to those questions> in.dicating j , for the most part,. the,' .:

comple:te'abse.nce of sla'/ery or similar practices. Caz;e'ful perusal of the:·'answers

shOWed,' however, that·vestiges of slavery .still existed"..~d the fact that .. -forty·or

fifty States :iMembers of the United Nations had not replied meant that 110 definit'e -. ',.',

o'pinion"could be given on the matter.· I '. ",:.:,' ',;. ",.

r. QUe-stiQns IV, :V and VI concerned 'various aspects of the traffic' in.slaves, ·or. ;·in

persons 'of :ser.vile 'status and asked whether the laws - whel:'e ·they,existed "',,". 'J •• '" _:

prohibiting',those.:-practices were rigorously applied or whether,ont,l1e ,cqn~.~,y; such
, , '

practices existed,:in"fa~rb" being' pr.ohi·bited only in, ,theo.ry?, 'ManY'.ISt:ate~, had "rElpli~d,

some in full detail, to those questions. Some said, however, that as slavery did

not exist, no reply was necessary. In other words, crime was to be legally'

prohibited only if committed, a principle many legal authorities would hardly admit.



fI'

.,

E/AQ~7/sR.534,
page 6'

. 'QUestion'VII related to warships which, under the provisions of art~cle, 22 ~f~

the 1958 ponve:ntion on 'the High Seas, boarded on the high seas a mer-chant ship '.'

suspected .of' bei~g. engaged-dn the slave trade. According to the' answers re'ceived,

no naval Power, ·great or· small, had had to apply that article •

.Question VIII enquired about the existence in the country of any particular

authorities responsible for combat~ng slavery, the slave trade, or practices similar

to slavery. Nearly all answers to that question stated 'chat there was no particular

authority responsible for suppressing slavery, the ordinary police and legal

authorities having jurisdiction in taatmatter a~ in the case of other crimes. .It

seemed, ~however, that some States considered that once slavery had been abOlished

and:;tegally'Qutlawed in ·a .country, a special 'authority responsible for the

repression of slavery should'be established.. The SUdan~ f.or instance~ mentioned

.(pal-a. U64) ·that a special department for· the repression of slavery had functioned

from 1898 until 1921, when slavery. had be~n completely eliminated, after which date

theqliestion became the responsibility of the ordinary Sudanese police force. That

exC\mple seemed to' .indica.te ·that-it wasel3sential tp' establish such authorities after

theclegal abdlition of, slavery in or.der to ensure 'effective application of the law.

Other countries had recently abolished slavery and ,might usefully have followed the.

exa.ri!ple· of:the SUdan;- unfortunately, none of them had answered that question.. '

Most of the answers to question IX, which asked whether there existed in th~

:countryeconoliiic, social, historical or other causes which might constitute an

to'the elimination of slavery,' were in the negatdve,-.

~ionX,askedwhateducational or other measUres had been, or were being,

stimulate public awareness of ' the necessity and importance of eliminating

a.llied practices. The. purpose of the question was to determine whether

done·to educate publiC opinion. The answers showed that very

Three' of the more helpfUl answers might be mentioned: the

effort to educate public opinion dated back to the early nineteenth

like William Wilberforce; Mali's answer referred to the political

to inform and educate the masses; and Austral~a's answer stated

awar$ness of. slavery was maintained with the help of United Nations

general e~ucation and some non-governmental organizations •



E/AC.7/SR.534
page '7

i.;

considerable j.mportanc~bec~use they rormed
..... -

action by the 'United' Nations contained in ,'"

In resolution 1077' (XXXIX)' theCoun'cil

Question XI had supplied the opportunity of asking States Members whether their

Governments had' ratified'lhe Gene~a Convention of 1926 a.n:a the Supplementary'" "

~' Convention of 1956. Most of the States Members which had an~were~ th~' ~uestionn~e

had also answered that qtiestion. ' The majority said that they had ac~eded to b6th '

Conventions; or that the process' of ratification: was almost complete. some'replies

indicated" however, th~t th~ Government, which had recently gained independenc~had

inherited from the colonial power many conventions, 'which had to 'be ~xamin~d and

studied before the process of rati~ication could take its 'course. Venezuela had

said~hat i.t had not ratified '~ith~r Convention because they did, n~t 'go'''far enough

in their c~~de~ation of all asp~cts of slave~y; national measures' went far beyond

both Conventions':~ ,

Qd~stions'XII, XIII and XIV were of

the basis o'f thEr 's~gg~stions for pos~ible

chaptE'i·: :LII' :(E/4:i68/Add'.3) of th~ report.

•.. ~

.~.

.,~ ,'.

. .

• " • I. .~

slavery.

Since the sugges:tions in ~'h~pter III of' the report'·we~~ already ~'~~mmary form;',':""

it Vias imrC'Gsible bo ~,~~~~rize them' ~~i-ther. '''H~''~ould, therefore, merely urge members""

to stUdy that part of the report ~it~'particu{d~:a~te~tion. In paragraph 78, he had' .

t"ubm:Lt/;ecl a draft resolut'ion cover~g':s'ome 'of' it,he '~~in ;~uggestions. He 'had done that >',.

in order to assist any drafting c6~itt~e whi6li th~' 'do~~cil might appoint, which could

accept, amend or reject the draft.

had requ~sted the Special Rapporteur to continue his work, to submit a final report .

to the Council'at its forty-first session and to include in that report suggestions

for po~si1Jle UnIted; Natj.ons a~tion on"th~'question of~slavery. He had de,cia.~d th~t, ,:

in ca!,~'yjng out; his ~andate, he ~ho~'ld be 'euid~iby the' opi~ions or' States Members,'~~'
, ,

expreE~ed in their answers to the que~tionnaire, as weii as by any advice he might

receive from ncn-governmenta'l orgcmi'zatians in consultative status.'

Question XII asked what measures could Usefully be taken at the international

level to combat slavery, the sla'T~ trade arid institutions an:d :p~~ct:Lce~ simil~"'to '~:Vlvery,
and quest:1.'~~;'XliI a's'ke'd what J.,egal, 'technic'ai, admin'is'trative,"ilna:nc{al or ~ihe;: .

assista.'1ce' 01' co-operataon would be desi~~bl~ 'in eiimwating' or :red~cing co~diti'ons

conducive to slavery and whether such assistance or ~o~ope;~tio~sh~uldbe r~~dered.: '

under- the auspd.ces of the U~ited Nations and the speciali~ed agencies.' Que~t~on'xiv"'"
• . i.: :' ~ . " I.

con.eerned '~.nternati.onal non-government.al, organizations and, ,the 'part they co~~:~ .~lay

in combating and eliminating slavery, the slave trade and practices similar to



1, .. ~ .~........ " ..

E/AC.7!SR.534'
page 8

He thanked the Council 'for the trust it "had placed in him and paid tribute

to the members of "the Division of Human Rights.

Question xv, wrdch merely said a~yfurther information relating to slavery or

practices similar to slavery would 'be gratefUlly received~ had produced no remarks

worth recording apart" from the United States reply, which had been received too late

to be included. in chapter "Ill and which merited special mention. In conclusion

the~Afore, he wished to quote that reply (E/4168/Add.4).

Mr~ DELlSLE (Canada) said he was glad to see the representative of Peru

as Chairman of the Committee. He regarded that as a guarantee of success in its

work. "He"was also pleased to welcome the new Director of the Division of Human

Hight,s, i"lI'. Schreiber, whose competence and wide expcrd.ence were well known. He paid

a tribute to the work of Mr~ Humphrey, the former Director of the Division, who in

April had resumed his former university career after playing a distinguished role in

the United Nations.

The Canadian" delegation commended the honesty, impartiality and intelligence

with which" Mr. Mohamed'Awadhad"carried out the missioT.l entrusted to him some years

previously. He had spared neither his time nor his energy, and it could only be a

matter for regret that he had not received all the co-operation he might have expected,

since a large number of Governments had failed to reply to the questionnaire submitted

to them.

The Committee thus had at its disposal a valuable catalogue of p~actices similar

(!;c:>.slavery or oonnected with slavery in one way or another which still existed i,n

certain parts of the world. Like the Special Rapporteur, he noted what the Gove.rnmerrt

of Laos had'to say about procuring'" a particularly insidious and very widespread

form of "slavery which only international collaboration could in the long run eliminate.

, Noteworthy among the Special Rapporteur's recommendations was the point concerning

"the or-gand.zatdon of regional seminars on slavery, whf.ch could lead to the establishment

of a kind of regional criminal police whose task would be to combat the traffic in
,

women for the purpose of prostitu,tion. His delegation likewise endorsed the idea of

setting up a"committee of experts on slavery whose general function would be to

assist the Council in its struggle to abolish slavery or practices similar to slavery.

However,since "'that proposal had financial implic'a.tions, the Secretary-General would

> have to submit an estimate of e:>..~enditure to the Committee.



E/AC.7/sJi~534·
page 9 .:.,

organization of regional seminars on slavery., and .. the

sla:rery in the. agenda .of the Internation:al Con; ez-ence

of Human Rights, whose competence in legal matters, culture an~chart?-cter th~.Greek.

delegation had fr~quently had occasion to appreciate. . She also paid:a tribute to

his predecessor, who had retired. after working devotedly and ~A£~ctively for the

cause of human rights.

Th~ Special Rapporteur had

in certain parts of the world.

Having rati'fied the International. Slavery .Convention of 1926, the Greek. . ..
Parliament had r-ecent.Ly enacbed a Law ratifying ..:the 1956 Supplementary Convention

on Slavery•. The abolition of slavery was fully in line with the proyisions of the

Greek Constitution and .. concept of pub'Lf.c policy.

Chapter III of the report contained· c~nstructi~e suggestions fro~ Governments

and non-governmental organization~ as well as the draft resolution submitted by. the

Special Rapporteur. In its operative part, the draft resolution proposed sound

realistic action such as the establishment of a committee 0f 2xperts on slavery, the. ~ .

i~cluFion of the questi~n 'of .

on Human Rightsc The draft.' .. '. . .' .; '. ~ ... "

also propos~~ the wides4P9ssible distribution for th~ Spec~al Rapporteur's report.
".. .I" .,..' .••• •

The Greek d,el~gation~·.suppo~ted all those measures and would also support a'1y amendments
.' • . >...: • • • •• ' '_ ' .: . c .C ~.r.~"....;. .

likely to stre~g~hen ~d supplement the United Nations'efforts to abolish slavery•
• • ' •••• • ; .' ,'. J". • • • .: :.,'.,'. :. :' ": ". '.

:)it the same t:i..me,'.the, Greek de.Lega'td.on would welcome bhe ~nsertion in. the
'. .' ".,: ..:.:. ,

preamble of an additional paragraph stressing the major contribution. of the
1',' • '.;\1. '.... .r..

specialized agencies and the non-governmental organizations to the struggle agai.nst

slavery•. It would also like to have an additional paragraph inserted in the

operative part whereby the Coun~il would invite the specialized agencies, non­

governmental organizations and inter-governmental organizations to continue their

action for the abolition of slavery.

Mrs.MAN·TZOULINOS (Greece) said she appreciatedt~e prt.vi~e~e pf workingiund&~ the· Chairman's able direction.' She welcomed the new ~rector .of the,Division

1

provided the Council with an exhaustive study.and"
~. . . '. ....

very va~uable recommendations. The Greek Government unreservedly ~ssociated ~tselt

with the international action undertaken to apo+ish slaverY;'~hichwas a flagrant
0" • • ••

affront to human dignity. The League of Nationshqd taken the initiative in

introducing steps designed to eliminate t~e . SCOurg8 of slavery, and the United

Nations, .which was responsible for· safeguarding and protecting fund~mental freedoms,
I

i
I must do all in its power to eliminate slavery and similar practi.c.e.s-. still existing

I
I

I
[1

I
I'

!

1i
!

late.

.d

lar

of

s

ry.

in

paid

cbed ,

Gted

imenf

lffient



E/AC. 7!S;J..534
page' 10 '.: ' ',:' :

.. ,. ~

more

basis

the n

labou

whic

the f

explo

by Po

a par

taken

Artic

makin

for t

sever

tions

sugge

immen

,
!lrie su

I~
hwas c
I'
~,out i

l the D

f Speci

inter

-';',

. " .

• o"

. '

.J. '.

.' ",1 ••t. :

.~ .

I. :,'

'.'. "' .
......: .t-

•." ·c· ....

'- ..'

"'r, ". .. .,'

..'
." "

. .' .,

.., .

~ Mr. UY: (Philippihes )welcomed the new Director. o~;~~~~ ,~~~~~~X! ..<>;f

lfaJrnail', Rights; who was' now taking up 'the, task begun' by his predecessor, and wished

him every success in his new, duties'. :- '

H~ congratulated the Special Rapporteur on' his excellent. report. The:

Government of the Philippines had acceded, to the 1962 Convention'andthe Suppl~­

mentar,y Convention of 1956. Philippine ,legislation punished slaver,y and. '

practices 'associated therewith. : He' reser~.red the right to,' subm:Lt more detailed

'comments at'a later: date on the report' arid, the' draft resolution'it contedned,

; i., Miss LUNSINGH-MElJER(Lu~Xm.bourg) assocdated harself;with· the good

wishes eXtended to the new' Director of the Division' of Human Rights:' she was ,,'::'

sure that the Committee "s work' would benefit grea~(ily' by his competence,

The 'interesting report by the Special Rapporteur was a valuable source of,

information and provided an over-aD. picture, of the',pesition with regard to

slavery, the traffic in human beings and similar institutions and 'practices ,',

'throughout the world. ManY Governments had replied to the ve-ry fi.i1l

questibIuiB.ire prepared bY' the' 'Special Rapporteur, and hadmade suggestions

concer1rl.ng governmental' Ol- non-govcrnmerite.l, action,that niight' .be- taken at­

different levels to combat and elimina.te'slavery' in' ,its various forms. " The

suggestlons made by' non~governmedt8.l';6rgai1izatioriS' competent ,in' that field' were

like~se':',ot ::liiterest. ' ,.", ~ : "
The'repl!es rec'eived shoved that the de facto situation did .no't always' 'reflect

the 'de' jure s.i.c,ua'tion. Legislative 'and administrative action lUltst be" 'taken,.

bub' it'-vas not enough;" deeply-rooted practices had to' :be combated, and the>':' ':"

ec~noIriic and sociciJ.' ~tructure of': commumties still affiictcd by·the ev'd.l of ','
,,' "_ l'.· . '..'" ... .." I' l. '. '. '. • . '; . , •

slavery had 'to b~ transformed radically.: 'The' important thing was to" eliminate ':

, the 'cond1ti6D:s' conducdve to ·such practices. ,The 'development aid ~programmes'·"

iDipie~nted:\iriderUili.t~d:Nation:s<auspic~'~ could make a valua.ble coritribution ':

towarci:~ "th~t '~iid:' Nor should 'the part' which non":'governmentcl. org'ani'zaM.ons'might

.....

Righ

take



........ n.

, .. "...,
\\.1.. ,

,',E/AC.7/SR. 834
page 11 " .

The Soviet,Union delegation supported in principle the conclusions and

suggestions of' the Special Rapporteur; but it·had certain reservations to make 'as to"

the establishment of a committee of experts; for it feared that such a step, while

contributing very little to the ;'abolition of slavery, would mean' an additional

financial burden for the United Nations. The struggle against slavery and similar

practices was part of the work programme of the Council and of the Commission on Human

Rights, and it was hardly likely that a new committee of experts would be able to

take really positive action in that field.

The,Special Rapporteur had done useful work by gathering so Inuch information ,and

making suggestions concerndng the action to be taken. She, supported his proposaf,

for the establishment of' a committee of experts which would underline the Organiza­

tions's concern 'with the elimination of slD:vory. Such a committee should have 'not

more than seven members and should be set up'£or two or three years only, on a'trial

basis. She supported the draft resolution 'in principle, subject to any other

suggestions that might be forthcoming during the debate •.

Mr. CRAND (India) ~oined in the congratulations offered to the Chairman and

the new Director of the Division of Human Rights, ~nd expressed appreciation of the

I immense amount of work which haa gone 'into ~~. Mohamed Awad's report. li~dia had been
!

la party: to the 1926 Convention and the Supplementary Convention of 1956, and had always,
I taken part in any action designed to restore' human dignity throughout the world.
lA ' drticlc 23 of its Constitution deno nced slavery in all its forms and the penal co e

severely punished si~ilar practices. India had abolished the last ~estigas of forced

labour which had persisted in tribal areas. It was ready to co..ope~ate,~~.eJ;'lY action

which the Committee might take along the lines indicated by the Special'Rapporteur.

Ipie supported in principle the draft resolution contained in Addendum 3 •. '

1\ ~~s. KASTALSIQ\YA (Union of Soviet Socialist ,Republics) said her delegation

~was convinced that under the chairmanship of Mr. Fernandini the Committee would carry

i
l out its work efficiently; she welcomed the appointment of Mr. Schreiber as Director of

t the Division of Human Rights. The delegation of the USSR likeWise thanked the
l',

,

',' Special Rapporteur for his very full report, for it attached' great importance to

! international co-operation with a view to abolishing slavery and ,all similar practices.

t It should be remembered, however, that slavery was not limited exclusively to .".
!, .

the facts mentioned in the report. Apartheid and certain forms of colonial.
exploitation still to be found in South Africa and in the territories administered:, ,'.;."

by Portugal constituted perhaps one of the most insidious forms of 'slavery with

wh~ch,the United Nations had to contend.



exp

mig

Spe

off

it

was

pro~

opdn

dete

of El

stu

new
that

"
exp

IRIg

t,. b .
l Y
r of

-,

r i

..... '

... ;'

. '.1

The

..... "

..~ .. ;

...'.

..•."., "il.!. "

: " ..

:',. ' - •.•..>', ", .: ~

. I:.L"

"

:'" I·. ',

" .
.~ " ] ....'.' ....

I.': •

By the same ,'j;.oken, the proposal to organize a series of regional s,em~ars on

slavery at th~·.headquarters of each 0", the regional~conomic commissions di~,:, not

seem very.seneible, for slavery, was not characteristic of all pa,rts of the world.. . . ~'.. ~ .

The regi9nalcommissions already had too many problems to solve to be able to giye.. .. .:, ." .
high p'rip~ity to ~~e.slaver~ qu~stion. Mor~over, as the reqources ~vailable for

organizing seminars, were very limited, the financial implications should ~lso be

taken into consideration. In th~ ~p~ion of her dele~at~on it would suffice to

organi,ze a single aeminar- in the only part"o~ the world where slavery could still

be consddsz-ed area,l scourge». In any case, her delegation noted that' there ·'ha..d
, , ,

already,been many. st~dies on slavery.and it ~as,ti~e that concrete action wa~ taken ..

in~he 'social" economi.c-nnd =!-egislative. fields. Concrete action by each country,
','

and the res~ts of such ~ction were mor~ impor~ant than any,purely theoreti~al

international activity, including the 'organiza~ion of seminars or the establishment

of groupe of e;x:p~,z:ts.'

. '.', Sir Samuel HOARE,, (United Kingdom) congrabul.abed the Chairman of the

Committee and ~elcomed the new Director of the Division of Human Rights.. ,..
The United Kingdom delegation thanke~ the~pecial Rapporteur ,for the immense task

he had accomplished, to which the repor~ ~efore the Committee bore w.~t~e~q•. , The

Counc,±l had already had -bhe slavery queatd.on before it for se:veral' years.' ....!t.. had

at ~ir~titri~d to obtain, the co-operation of Member States by encouraging them to

ratify the 1926 Convention on, Slavery and the ,Supplementary Convention of 1956.
".. '.. . .- .." .' ,

results ~~ h~rdly beenencour.aging, a~d ase?ond ~tort. ha~..not been appr0~iably.more. . ...' ..

fzvi!.t;ful.. .That·w<,?,s why the Council had decided, at the proposal of the United. '. - " .., . '. .
Kingdomt t9,reques~: that a Special Rapporteur on $lavery pe designated. The ~eport

.• • . " . I'

before the Co~tt~e proved h9W, wise that decis~on had been,' for it contained very"
• .- j • ...... ~ .• ' • .,' •

full iijfo~ma~ion pn .the instituti9ns or practiges similar to. slavery still existiug
t.· ., . • , .,' <. ' ...'

in the world,.

As to the USSR delegation's remark concerning apar~~ei~ and ra~i~l disc~imination,

those questions could be;' discussed by,the pouncil:, when it~~s..21 ~d 24 of th~' age~da' ,. .'... .. ~ . . " :. ' ..,. :

were dealt with. He considered" mor~over, tha~, th~ ,Cqmmi~s~on o~ Huw~ Rights f which
• ". '." I • _.' .'" '" •• '. ...;

:was already, o:verloadedwitp work, could not,,,tak~, up, th~ question of qlavery so as to
... I ~. '- • .- '.. ,1. I '. • '-'. .• . . •

make reco~endations. for action on the part of tn~ Council at its forty-third session.
• .••••• •. ..' ,;" 'f " '" ••••••.•• I .• ." .. , '.' .'

\·'E/AC.7/SR.534 •
page 12

·.~I'·' .,'."~'~~"""""_'~_-""'''''''''''1' ..,,._
1:\



I

r
Irl
,.f,!"I:!

t~·•..•.l.
\ ",.)~

I~

11' ·
~.~ .

, .,

..

E!AC. 7!SR. 534
page 13

" ,

.. t

: , '~."

. '\'

.... ;. ;.....:.:"

'. •... .;. .,~., i.;'.\ ..••

··:'~-The" Uhitea'1 Kingdom' delegation app;6~ed in principle the '~~~~:ures e~rl~aged i.D:"
.' .• ...... . .... ",,. ••. I' • ,": I','" • .., ,.,..... .... '~\,.. .' .."..... •

the'draft re'solution 'proposed by the Rapporteur, and above all, the suggestion fpr tlie
.... ; r (.., ... ·t·... ; ',' . .:. ,.,' , . . . . ' ... '1.' • J'" • .., ...

establishment 01''''8,' 'COEttee of experts - wJ;lich in its opinion should not number' more

than seven, as' had been rightly urged' 'by the dele'g~tio~ of Luxembu~g. 'J:'~e Gouncil
• •••. _. ... ."... ." .a~'-. • • , ;!... " "... '.. . :.-

was not equippea to follow"closely the development of t~at'problem, and ..the' committee

of~'e~etts wo~d be' abie' to 'fuJ.:f.'il that function as a 'c6ns:;J"'tati:Ve' org~.' 'The~e was no,

question of empowering the new bod; to institute inqui~ie'~:'in' Me~be~ 'stat~s or' to Qri~
ch~g~~ ~g~nst:them. Its ~ssential task would b~ th~t of' ~~vi~wing ail the information

available to the Ucl.ted Na:ti~ns and suggesting'p'OS~ibl~ action ~y ,thE3 Go~cil~ , ~e,had
',.' 'I . ': ' ','. ' ,

doubts, however, about the proposal that the committee of experts .might itself appoint "
;..... ;..-~... . . ""~~:"'': .,', '~.~"'- - .~

experts 'oF set up sub-committees, and certain other proposals in the draft resolution

might be examined more carefully, esp~cially that on the.9rganization of seminars • The
~ " '. ~,! ". . . . . . ...·r•.".·.:;'·: • ~r:· '.~ "

Special Rapporteur had himself recognized that up be the pr~~H3E:!nt ~o Government had

offered to' be ;host to:~"seminar in its territo,ry~ 'l:U1d that ~~ised,doubt as tQ ,whether

it would really ce possible to act upon that,":proposal. " ':

. ': ' ::, Mr. 'tq~AVI (Iran) offered sincere '~o~gratui~tio~s ·~o the 'Ghai~~ 'and' ,
, exP~~ssed s8:tisf~~~io~'''at the appointment'of Mr. Schi-e~~er as Director ~.i ~he Human
t • . .. '. • • .. • '.' • "

(; Rlghts'Division. ,', ,", ,

f ,The ~rm.u~ deleg,a·~~o.~ apP~,oved. in p,~inc~Plethe su&,~e~tio~s, and proposals submitted

t by the Special Rapporteur, e~pecial1y that concerning the establis~ent of a committee
[ .'. i ,". ." I ; .....,. ,:' '" .;~ ':-, -; : ..', .' .' ~,"

of experts on' slavery'~' "Btit'ihat question hadalready been stu~ie~ ,repeatedly,- an~ .. i1f.
. ..' '- .•. ""! ';';":; ,.' .".~.t": .. .J .' , ,..~. ~- .,.... ' .... :~ I .r: J.:~"':~ "', .;" .\'.. '"

was legiti.InB.te:to"ask whether the time had not come to take, concrete action on t~~various
. • • • .• \ •• ...' •• .' • '. ~~ : .. ...:'•.' ~ '::." .~ " ':' ' '.:. ) •.•.•• I'"";.....:~ .•

proposals made on 'the 'subject. Thus, tne Iranian delegation sh~ed to some extent t~e
...... ': f O'.; ......,,;.{: ;,.-,,>,::~,..- r ' •.,'" .,' " :".:.",i'~ . ,. "',. ~ ',1 •• '

opinion expressed by the' representative of the Soviet Union, ~d would welcome turt~er
. { • ....... , ~,. •.... t' ...,. '...:. '...•' .

details from tne' Speciai' Rapporteur concerning the terms of ~eference of the cpmmittee

of expe'~t:d;~':- 'The ':~~ni1i~'~bee '~orild~pparentlyhav~ ,two sep~'ate itask~; to cori:tIhue the,
J. -, j.;..... t . ',. ": ,/0. I ': ... ~ .... r; .' • '. •.': ~·i ..·. .... M' ' •••

studies on s~avery, ,~ op~rat~o~ ,which did not, seem to ca.J.l for the establis~~nt of ,a
• • ~ 't." .., •• '\ • • . " oo{. ..... " •.• • • ,_ ; .: t .• ,

new' body; and, to' propo~e'lra.rious'i.!lterna,ti<nal '!I1easures.lt W(3.,S on the l.atter point
;. ',... ' .' ')., " ., ", •.• . ~ • ~'. '.~' ';../" . • .•• '. : '" .. •. '1 • .

that' additional information would be useful.

"



,I

His delegation approved of the Speci&! Rapporte~'s suggestion for. the establish­

ment of. a draf~ing, committee whose members would be appointed by the Chairman and whose

task ~uld be, to'pr~pare a draft resoluti~n for sUbmis~ion to the Council. He· might

revert, to that question at a later stage in the debate.
•.•• 1 1

. Mr. NAIK (Pakistllll) joined in the tribute paid to th~ new Chairman of the

Committee, whc had righ:tly emphasized the importanoe of the Committee's work. He. also
! ·to. • •

welcomed ~henew Director of the Division of Human Rights.

The study. submitted by the Special Rapporteur was an extremely valuable b~dy of
. . .

infQnnation. , It seemed unnecessar,y to re~terate his Government's reply to the

quest:i.ormsn,.e: slavery had never- existed in Pakistan, which had ratified the 1926

Convention and the Supplementary Convention of 1956, as ,,!ell as the ILO Conventions.

..onForced Labour.
: .'

III The, Special,Rapporteur atbibuted the fact that a n~er of countries had not

I.. rep~ed.~C? questdons XII, XIII and, XIV o~ the queatdonafre to a misunderstanding. The

l.

t,'"./. ' reason why his country had not done so was because ,slavery had never existed in

.' Pakistan and it would therefore be presumptuous to propose measures ai,med at eliminating

~< ouch pr.ac:ti~es in areas where it might still persist. That certainly did not mean that

If r.ds count~ tcok no interest in the question; the Government of Pakistan would support,

"1' any, .11!easur,? aimed at fina.lly ~radicating slavery.

I~•.!].l•..•..•••··.• ··· "Be~~:r;'e ~ a final decision to suppor-t the SP?cial Rapporteur' s propo~als, which
r were ..based .~~r 1;he most part on suggestions made, by Governments in ~heir replies, the,

1,. ,Palt~~t~:delegation w:i shed to hear the explanations requested by several representatives,
;'{

espec~~ the representative of Iran, concerning the terms of reference of the proposed
, , .

, cornmitteeof experts., In his opinion, the committee of experts, should have only. . .. "

consult~tive function~, as the United rCingdb~representativehad suggested.

Mr. ELMElIDORF (United States of America) welcomed the prospect of working

iriclose co-qperation with the Chairman and with the new Director of the Divi,sion of

'Human Rights. 'He ~as Ple~sed to have the' final ~eport of the SpeciaJ., Rapporteur, and he
'.,- ..". -. .."..,.. . -... \ .

.•. ..•. ;n-:>ted with satisfaction that Mr. Awad would continue to take,par:t in t}1e . United Nations
_"r:·, - • ......." _ •

'\f/ work on human rights, since he had just been elected a member of the Sub-Commission on

.~/.t\Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities.

't,=",
i,~o~lVAO.7/sR.~.34 "
fj page 14 .. ' "

11
[) .

.~

1

I

The quality of the replies to the questionaire varied greatly from one country to

another. . HoweverJthey had increased enough in number to enable the Committee to

action On the item at the present session{



11

I:
j\
f{

n
I;

I

.1
t
I

r1I
I

,
~.[

The United States delegation·was grateful to the 'SpeciaI Rapporteur for having

drawn the Committeets attention. to the suggestions made by its Government in reply

to ·question XV. He had in mind, above all, the remark·that it would be usef'ul, ·for

the Secretary-General to consider certain spheres where Member States might be proVided

with aid. . Non-governmental organizations should be able to collaborate' in the

activities undertaken by the Secretary-General.

With regard to the IrOposal to establish a committee of experts on slavery, the

United states delegation thought that the Council was not in·a position. to undertake a

further task in that field. A'number of subsidiary organs-vere already concerned with

questions relating to the protection of human rights and the work programme of the·

Council was already heavy. It was in· that connexfon that the- Costa Rican proposal for

the appointment of a High Commissioner for Human Rights took on its full significance:

rather than multiply the procedures and difficulties, it would be desirable to bring the

different questions connected with the practice of slavery before bodies 'already in

existence or whose establishment had been proposed.

It was important to keep very clearly in mind the fact that total eradication of

slavery could only be achieved through the economic and social development of the

fj countries ·in which it persisted. Law and law-enforcement organs could only. hope to

[1 eliminate .that evil if the over-all devalcpmerrt of the country made its 'eradication

!) possible. .

The.i idea of organizing seminars was sound, but only to the extent that such a step

could be taken within the fr'amework of the programme of advisory services in the. field

j of human rights. In· any case, a decision on that matter would be premature as long as

no country had offered to be host.

Mr. BO~ {F't.ance) associated himself with the congratulations to the

Chairman and the new Directotof the Division of Human Rights.

The French delegation was grateful to the Special Rapporteur, and to the. members of

the Secretariat who had helped him, for the document 'before the Committee, which

contained valuable' information on...the legislation of numerous counbrdes on slavery and

similar practices.

At the thirty-ninth session the French delegation had abstained from partidpating
•• J . . • ' •

:'j":1e discussion on that item of··the' agenda because the French version of the report

he. l been issued too late. It was pleased to note that the delay had enabled the Spe~iaJ.

Rapporteur to produce additional documefits and to compile a list of' the measures which.

the United Nations might be called upon to take in that field.

E/AC.7/SR.534 .. ~ .~~:
page 15 . .



" ~

"

''$/AC.7!SR.,,34
page 16 ~.. . "'.:...

':\.>' ...

'~:t' .:

r

•• j'
t '" ~ ..

.".'1

. "','

The proposal, on seminars: \o{a:~ :.sOUll~1 prov:i;ded tha~ a siFgle expeZ:iment~ s~~~~

was Grganiz~d ',~ the first 'i~s:t~ce and tbe:t the cosbs involved wer~ c,h¥,g~d ~~;, t~e., ;:.
£unqs 'nqp1ll~ prqy:~ded under t~~i)J.eading, qf,?-dvisory ,servi<?es iIf' t~e f~eld of;.,h~ c:

;:~~g~ts.: ,The Fren,ch delegat~Qp. ..f;,8:voured,,;,~ p~inci.I?le ,.:tpo E?stabli~e!,1~,\ <;>f .a '90~~te.e

of expez-ts , .~but '!Pre the Canad~~ deleg~tion i~ wo4d JJl!:e .to lmoW:}~~_~inanci:%...':"'.

implications. In any case, the new body should. be kept within re!3-~oAable J4Jni.:t~., ,; ..
and the proposal to limit bhe numbar of:" ;membo!,".:?,' .bo seven, seemed s~psible.. As

Un~teq ..R;ingdom z-epresenbatdve had ..~,aic;1:,th€l committee o~ .experts, ,sho1L!:-d only be a. . .. '

c9~su1tat;i.ve .body, Its ·taskshquld be to furnish. informati:c;>n to, the Co~~,~l and ~e;t.p.

'Governments which so des-ired to solve any problems which ,ar.ose in their countries in.
, . , .. . -. .... , ..,

·~~nt:l!3xionj for example, v4th ce~t~ rQ~S'of slayery which i t,~. was n?t always, easy to,.,

cara.d.~cq.t.~,because they weI;e$o a:J.oE;1ely. interwov~A with the exi~Jiing'sociaJ.and.oconC?mic

'~tryP.'~ures. Thus i,t wo~~g·...bo a long-term ,~;rfor~~,..to bo cm;;l:'ied'9ut .abovo all in the

soc:j.,q,l· ,jlAd ,.~conomic,. s~~.:tc?.rs •..": 4 com.mittee·of. exp~~t~' could,not init:iate .such t:Lctio~,:.;,

direct~: its role should be that o~an inte~edi~betwoc~ the ,Governm~nts conc~r~~d

and,th~.~~~~d·Nat~on~~,chniq~, a~~is~ance bodies ~ith a view todete~g t~e

special; needs which: h~d t;,q;:be·,m~;t., in that field. '; ~",

". ,:.: Mr., SCHREIBER '(D~ec~9~.,.:"P.i:vision o~ I:Itunan Rigl~ts) thanked tJ:1e ,:yariou/:!; spe~ers

for .the:4', -congrabul.atdona; .,,He. ~ew tha'j:i tQ;~_ ..:Secrot~-Gener~ had entrusted~ ;:tfl~~

a task which was both heavy and especially challenging. He would try to carl\Y .i~_,qut

~p.,::;the· best, of his ability, and _,;4th ·;·the "u'~most '9bjectiyity. _,Those ,wh~ had pa~d tributes

tQ."t.heactivities of hi~· ·p:r;~,~ec~ss~~.might be interes~ed to know that',;the l~tter was

;d.e~~~ned to contdnue ~,~, activiti~s in the f:i:eld of .bhe .protection ot; human rights.

In the speech he had just delivered ~n the Counc~ (142lst meeti~~) .tbe:Se~retary-,

General had st:r;-esse4 th,e part which .the Organization should play ir). the' field of human
. ." • -' .'',' ,',' • I ..-~ .:~ .......: ... ':'

rights and which wouldt~~ ,oZl, a .specia+ ~ignificance in. 1968, the year ~e~ignatec;l by

',;,the General Assembly as. the, ,,~t~;t"national Year f?r HUman Rights.

He wis.hed. to, assure the m,e.~~rs .o~ the,. Committ~e .that~J:lGY coukd count on the

co~perat~pn of his Division, rrhich, would ~ry to apply faiiihfu],ly any decisions. the ','
,- . ._. . . . ~ " . , • ' , ". • ,.t,

Corrnnittele might make• , .'
"'.. ~ ,


	biton0003A04
	biton0003A05
	biton0003A06
	biton0003A07
	biton0003A08
	biton0003A09
	biton0003A10
	biton0003A11
	biton0003A12
	biton0003B01
	biton0003B02
	biton0003B03
	biton0003B04
	biton0003B05
	biton0003B06
	biton0003B07



